
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Memorandum 
 
To: e-distribution 

see listing below 
 
From: Lesly Tribelhorn, P.E. 

Highways Engineer 
 
Date: September 28, 2018 

 
Subject: Placing Topsoil on the Surfacing Inslope 

 
 
This design memo serves as clarification to the November 20, 1996 design memo as 
approved by Gary A. Gilmore, Highways & Engineering Division Administrator 
(attached). 
 
Topsoil will be placed on the gravel surfacing inslope to within 20 inches of the edge of 
plant mix for all projects that involve reconstruction or widening of the base course 
gravels. Exceptions are permissible as prescribed below. 

• Placing topsoil on the gravel inslope is not viable for all projects.  Topsoil does 
not need to be placed in areas where the adjacent terrain precludes the 
establishment of vegetation or that require a high degree of shoulder 
maintenance.  This may include areas that are heavily sanded or have rock 
faces. 

• The placement of topsoil on the gravel inslope should be evaluated at the 
preliminary field review with a final decision being made after the alignment and 
grade are determined. 

• Only the available topsoil obtained from normal salvage operations would be 
used.  MDT will not import topsoil from off-site sources specifically for surfacing 
inslope coverage.  Normal construction practices will be used to place the topsoil 
on the gravel inslope. 

 
Clarification points: 

• Convene a multi-disciplinary team to address all concerns regarding topsoil on 
the surfacing gravel as early in the design process as possible.  This team should 
include representatives from Environmental Services, Geotechnical, 
Maintenance (field and headquarters), Design, and others as necessary. 

• Consider such factors as moisture content in the subgrade, types of vegetation 
anticipated, aesthetics, potential for contamination of base material with fines, 
potential for adding sub-surface drainage features or improving the draining 
capacity of the subgrade material, and freeze-thaw cycles. 
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• Remember that MDT is required by law to “seed barrow pits, slopes, and 
shoulders to an adaptable perennial grass or combination of perennial grasses 
and legumes whenever establishment of perennial grass covers seem suitable.” 
(MCA 60-2-208). MDT is expected to maintain a noxious weed-free roadway 
environment. 

• The Montana County Weed Act (2010) and 2014 Executive Order Establishing 
the Montana Invasive Species Advisory Council provide direction for controlling 
noxious weeds, including the reestablishment of “a cover of beneficial plants.” 

• The gravel surfacing inslope is a constructed feature utilizing processed 
materials rather than a disturbed area and MDT is not required to topsoil the 
driving surface of a gravel road.  However, the inslope does behave like a 
disturbed area concerning weed propagation and MDT is required to control 
noxious weeds.  Therefore, MDT is taking steps to minimize the spread of 
weeds.  Hence the need for topsoil placement, seeding etc. 

• Benefits to topsoil and seeding include: 
o Topsoil provides the foundation necessary to establish a desired 

vegetative cover and allow the designed species to effectively compete 
with the noxious weeds. 

o The establishment of desirable vegetation will reduce the volume of 
herbicides applied or result in herbicide applications having a greater 
effect on weed reduction. 

o Environmental impacts and maintenance costs will be reduced over time 
and will mitigate public scrutiny of herbicide use by MDT forces. 

o Established desirable vegetation improves the appearance of the 
roadside and has generated positive feedback from the traveling public. 

• Placing topsoil on the gravel inslope may not be practical in all situations.  
Impractical project sites include those with little or no established vegetation, 
minimal topsoil, and adjacent rock slopes.   

• There may be specific project locations where placing topsoil on the surfacing 
inslope could be wasteful or detrimental, and all disciplines agree to forgo the 
treatment. 

• Document all exceptions in the Scope of Work Report Maintenance Items section 
(what will be done and why the decision was made). Provide solid justification.  
One person’s preference may not be in the best interest of MDT. 

 
 
 

Electronic distribution: 
 
Dustin Rouse, Preconstruction Engineer 
Kevin Christensen, Construction Engineer 
Lesly Tribelhorn, Highways Engineer 
James Combs, Highways Design Engineer 
Damian Krings, Road Design Engineer 
Roy Peterson, Traffic & Safety Engineer 
Ivan Ulberg, Traffic Design Engineer 
Stephanie Brandenberger, Bridge Engineer 
Jeff Jackson, Materials Engineer (Acting) 
Ryan Dahlke, Consultant Design Engineer 
Bryan Miller, Consultant Plans Engineer 

 

https://leg.mt.gov/content/Committees/Interim/2009_2010/Environmental_Quality_Council/Minutes/eqc01072010_ex13.pdf
https://governor.mt.gov/Portals/16/docs/2014EOs/EO_13_2014_Invasive_Species.pdf
https://formergovernors.mt.gov/bullock/docs/2014EOs/EO_13_2014_Invasive_Species.pdf


Lisa Durbin, Construction Administration Services Engineer 
Paul Jagoda, Construction Engineering Services Engineer 
Jake Goettle, Engineering Construction Contracting Bureau Chief 
Jim Frank, Glendive District Preconstruction Engineer 
Rod Nelson, Billings District Preconstruction Engineer 
Duane Liebel, Butte District Preconstruction Engineer 
Shane Stack, Missoula District Preconstruction Engineer 
Steve Prinzing, Great Falls District Preconstruction Engineer 
John Cornell, Road Plans Checker 
Jerry Sabol, Road Plans Checker 
Jon Swartz, Maintenance Administrator 
Doug McBroom, Operations Manager 
Tom Martin, Environmental Services Bureau Chief 
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